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RESULTS AT A GLANCE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020  Increase/ (Decrease)
NGN’000 NGN’000 %

Revenue 1,380,413,930 27,807,688 4,864

Profit before tax 17,226,065 3,838,020 349

Minimum tax (3,451,671) (70,322) 4,808

Income tax (828,633) (179,134) 363

Profit for the year 12,945,761 3,588,564 261

Share capital (5,000) (5,000) -

Shareholders' fund 101,838,283 13,143,976 675
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Directors' Report
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of Petroleum Products Marketing Company
Limited (“the Company”), together with the financial statements and auditor’s report for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activity and business review
Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited (PPMC) was incorporated in Nigeria under the
Companies and Allied Matters Act, as a private Company, and is domiciled in Nigeria.  The address of
its registered office is NNPC Towers, Central Business District, Herbert Macaulay Way, Abuja.
The Company had been principally engaged to the supply and market refined petroleum products to
marketers/retailers on behalf of its parent company, Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC)
as an agent. 
On 30 June 2021, the Company ceased to act as an agent of its parent company, Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). This was approved by the Top Management Committee (TMC) of the
NNPC on 30 June 2021 (See Note 27).
The Company generates income from the following sources:
 Sale of White Products such as Dual Purpose Kerosene (DPK), Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) and

Automotive Gas Oil (AGO)
 Commission on sale of petroleum products on behalf of its parent company, NNPC and Duke Oil,

one of its related parties;
 Commission from collection of levies on behalf of the Petroleum Equalization fund (PEF); and
 Sale of Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG).

Operating results and dividends
The following is a summary of the Company’s operating results:

2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Revenue 1,380,413,930 27,807,688

Operating profit 17,719,356 3,549,375

Minimum tax (3,451,671) (70,322)

Income tax (828,633) (179,134)

Profit for the year 12,945,761 3,588,564

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (net of tax) 12,082,273 (13,951,799)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 25,028,034 (10,363,235)

No dividend has been recommended by the directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:Nil).
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Directors’ Report (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
Directors and their interests

The directors who served the company during the year were as follows:

Name Designation Appointed/ (Resigned)
Mele K. Kyari Chairman
Isiyaku Abdullahi Managing Director
Musa Lawan Managing Director (17 November 2021)
Naheem Yinusa Executive Director Commercial (27 May 2022)*
Haruna M. Gwani Executive Director Shared Services 27 May 2022**
Tijjani R. Ali Executive Director Commercial 27 May 2022**
Kolade Otitonaiye Executive Director Shared Services (27 May 2022)*
Lawrencia Ndupu Director (17 November 2021)
Adeyemi Adetunji Director 17 November 2021
Oritsemeyiwa Eyesan Director
Adokiye Tombomieye Director
Ayuba Ashu Angyu Director 17 November 2021

*Kolade Otitonaiye and Naheem Yinusa resigned as directors on 27 May 2022
** Haruna M. Gwani and Tijani Ali were appointed as directors on 27 May 2022

The Directors have indicated that they do not have any interests required to be disclosed under Section
303 of CAMA 2020 and further confirm the availability of all records of the Board and the Annual
General Meetings for inspection as required under Sections 266 and 267 of CAMA 2020.   

In accordance with Section 303 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, (CAMA 2020) none of the
directors has notified the Company of any declarable interests in contracts with the Company.

Shareholding Structure
The authorised and issued share capital of the Company is 5,000,000 shares with a par value of N1 per
share.

According to the register of members as at 31 December 2021, the following shareholders held
portions of the issued share capital of the Company:

Shareholders Number of shares Percentage held (%)
Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) 4,999,996 100
Group Managing Director (GMD) 1 -
Group  Executive Director, Refining & Petrochemical 1 -
Group  Executive Director, Commercial & Investment 1 -
Group General Manager, Legal & Secretary 1 -

5,000,000 100

Property, Plant and Equipment
The changes in property, plant and equipment during the year are highlighted in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

                                                                                                                                                                    5
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Directors’ Report (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

DONATIONS 
The Company made donations to the following organisations during the year:

2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Niger Delta Stakeholders Congress - 500
IDP Support - 2,863
Oil Trading and Logistics Africa - 7,000
Nigerian Union of Petroleum Natural Gas Workers 500 -
Petroleum and Natural Gas Senior Staff Association of
Nigeria (PENGASSAN) 2,000

-

2,500 10,363

The Company did not make any donation to any political association, or  for any political purpose  in
the course of the year (2020: Nil).

Events After Reporting Period Date
Expect as disclosed in Note 26, there are no events after the reporting date which could have a material
effect on the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and on the profit and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended which have not been adequately accounted for or
disclosed in the financial statements.

Mode of Meeting
The Company conducted its Board Meetings physically on 27 July 2021 and 21 December 2021.

EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEES

(a) Employment consultation and training

The Company places considerable value on the involvement of its employees in major policy
matters and keeps them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on various factors
affecting the performance of the Company. This is achieved through regular meetings with
employees and consultations with their representatives. Training is conducted for the
Company’s employees as the need arises.

Management, professional and technical expertise are the Company's major assets. The
Company continues to invest in developing such skills. The Company has in-house training
facilities, complemented, when and where necessary, with external training for its employees.

(b) Dissemination of information

In order to maintain shared perception of our goals, the Company is committed to
communicating  information to employees in a fast and effective manner, as possible. This is
considered critical to the maintenance of team spirit and high employee morale.

(c) Employment of physically challenged persons

While the Company has no physically challenged persons in its employment as at 31 December
2021, applications for employment by physically challenged persons are always fully
considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concerned.
In the event of members of staff becoming physically challenged, every effort is made to ensure
that their employment with the Company continues and that appropriate training is arranged.  It
is the policy of the Company that training, career development and promotion of physically
challenged persons should, as far as possible, be identical with those of other employees.
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Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited 

Annual Report 

31 December 2021 

Statement of Corporate Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 

Further to the provisions of section 405 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA), 2020, we, 
the Managing Director/CEO and Executive Director - Shared Services, hereby certify the financial 
statements of the Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited for the year ended 3 l December 

2021 as follows: 

a) That we have reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2021.

b) That the audited financial statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit
to state a material fact which would make the statements misleading, in the light of the

circumstances under which such statement was made.

c) That the audited financial statements and all other financial information included in the
statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of

the Company as of and for, the year ended 31 December 2021.

d) That we are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and have designed
such internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the Company is made known to
the officer by other officers of the companies, during the period end; 31 December 2021.

e) That we have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls within 90 days prior
to the date of audited financial statements, and certify that the Company's internal controls are

effective as of that date
f) That there were no significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could

significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our evaluation, including any
corrective action with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

g) That we have disclosed the following information to the Company's Auditors:

(i) there are no significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which

could adversely affect the Company's ability to record, process, summarise and report
financial data, and have identified for the Company's auditors any material weaknesses in
internal controls, and
(ii) there is no fraud that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the Compa ' mtemal control.

Signature 

Isiyaku Abdullahi 
Managing Director 
(FRC/2015/ANAN/00000012171) 

Date ...... June 2022 

� . . . . ...... . . .
Signature 

Ayuba Ashu Angyu 
Director 
(FRC/2017/ANAN/00000016581) 

Date ...... June 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholders of Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited 
(the Company), which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2021;
• the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income;
• the statement of changes in equity;
• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Company as at 31 December, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner 
required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA), 2020 and the Financial Reporting Council of 
Nigeria Act, 2011 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nigeria and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate 
information, Results at a Glance, Directors’ Report, Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, 
Statement of Corporate Responsibility and Other National Disclosures, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

esponsi i ities of the ire tors for the inan ia  tatements 
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with IFRSs and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA), 
2020 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011, and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

itor s esponsi i ities for the it of the inan ia  tatements 
Our ob ectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional udgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. owever, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

Report on ther e al and Re ulator  Re uirements 
Compliance ith the re uirements of Schedule  of the Companies and Allied atters Act (CA A)   

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from
our examination of those books

iii. The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account.

Signed: Signed: 

Olutoyin I. Ogunlowo 
FRC 201 1CAN 0000001 21 
For: PMG Professional 
Services Chartered Accountants 
1 uly 2022 
Lagos, Nigeria 

Paul Akinade Adebimpe 
FRC 201 ICAN 0000000 0 0 For: 
Paul Akinade Adebimpe  Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
1 uly 2022 
Abu a Nigeria 

Toyin Ogunlowo

MSegbenu
Stamp
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December

Notes 2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Revenue 7 1,380,413,930 27,807,688

Cost of sales 9 (1,332,142,977) (5,639,005)

Gross profit 48,270,953 22,168,683

Other income 8 254,359 327,806

Operating expenses 10 (20,730,458) (14,580,650)

Impairment loss on financial assets 29(B)(i) (10,075,498) (4,366,464)

Operating  profit 17,719,356 3,549,375

Finance income 11(a) 311,905 291,284

Finance costs 11(b) (805,196) (2,639)

Net finance (costs)/income (493,291) 288,645

Profit before minimum tax and income tax 17,226,065 3,838,020

Minimum tax 12(a) (3,451,671) (70,322)

Profit before income tax 13,774,394 3,767,698

Income tax expense 12(b) (828,633) (179,134)

Profit for the year 12,945,761 3,588,564

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of employee benefits obligation 21 12,082,273 (13,951,799)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 12,082,273 (13,951,799)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 25,028,034 (10,363,235)

The accompanying notes form an  integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity 

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share
capital

NGN'000

Other
Reserve

NGN'000

Capital
contribution

NGN'000

Accumulated
deficit

NGN'000

Total
equity

NGN'000
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2020 5,000 423,143,396 - (399,641,185) 23,507,211
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - 3,588,564 3,588,564
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax - - - (13,951,799) (13,951,799)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (10,363,235) (10,363,235)
 Balance at 31 December 2020 5,000 423,143,396 - (410,004,420) 13,143,976

For the year ended 31 December 2021

As at 1 January 2021 5,000 423,143,396 - (410,004,420) 13,143,976

Capital contribution from NNPC* (Note 27) - - 63,666,273 - 63,666,273
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - 12,945,761 12,945,761
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 12,082,273 12,082,273
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 25,028,034 25,028,034
Balance at 31 December 2021 5,000 423,143,396 63,666,273 (384,976,386) 101,838,283

* Capital Contribution relate to the migrated balances from the parent company, NNPC to the Company
The accompanying notes form an  integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December

Notes 2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Profit for the year 12,945,761 3,588,564

Adjustments for:
Finance income 11(a) (311,905) (291,284)
Financial costs 11(b) 3,558 2,639
Day one loss on receivable from debt
management office 11(b) 801,638 -
Depreciation expense- PPE 10 37,375 45,547
Depreciation expense -Right of Use Assets 10 6,373 38,242
Employee benefits obligation expense 21(c) 4,921,982 4,568,287
Other taxes 10 2,115,952 -

 Increase in provisions for litigations and taxes 10 1,000 -
Minimum tax expense 12(a) 3,451,671 70,322
Income tax expense 12(b) 828,633 179,134
Impairment loss on financial assets 29(B)(i) 10,074,497 4,366,464
Write off of inventory 9 91,749 -

34,968,284 12,567,915
Changes in:
Prepayments 15(a) (151,243) 276,582
Inventories 16(b) 27,840,870 -
Trade and other receivables 17(e) 61,683,420 (12,067,924)
Trade and other payables 20(a) 430,812,902 (2,967,691)
Contract liabilities 7(c) 26,952,899 (4,398)
Cash generated from operating activities 582,107,132 (2,195,516)
Other taxes paid 22 (1,618,645) -
Taxes paid 12(d) (227,573) (697,429)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
activities 580,260,914 (2,892,945)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest on deposit 11(a) - 291,284
Net cash generated from investing activities - 291,284

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liability 24 - (40,467)
Bank charges paid 11(b) (3,558) (2,639)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,558) (43,106)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 580,257,356 (2,644,767)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 12,298,667 14,943,434
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 18 592,556,023 12,298,667

The accompanying notes form an  integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Reporting entity

Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited (PPMC) was incorporated in Nigeria under the
Companies and Allied Matters Act as a private Company, and is domiciled in Nigeria. The address
of its registered office is NNPC Towers, Central Business District, Herbert Macaulay Way, Abuja.
The Company had been principally engaged to the supply and market refined petroleum products to
marketers/ retailers on behalf of its parent company, Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation
(NNPC) as an agent.
However, on 30 June 2021, the Company became financially autonomous from its parent company,
Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) and therefore, ceased to act as an agent. The
financial autonomy was approved by the Top Management Committee of the NNPC on 30 June
2021.
Hence, the Company became principally engaged to supply and market refined petroleum products

to marketers/retailers as a principal. The Company also obtained the rights to hold stock of
petroleum products.

The Company also earns income from a 50:50 profit sharing agreement with Duke Oil ( one of its
related parties), Commission from collection of levies on behalf of the Petroleum Equalization Fund
(PEF) and Sale of Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG).

2. Basis of accounting
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and in the
manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAMA 2020 and the Financial
Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on _______ June
2022.
Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 6.

3. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption and historical
cost, except where otherwise stated.

4. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira (NGN), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts stated in NGN have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

5. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

A. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties as at 31 December 2021 that have a
significant risk of resulting in material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the next financial year is included in the following notes:

 Note 21(f) - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

 Note 29 B.(i)  - measurement of ECL (Expected Credit Loss) allowance for trade receivables,
related party receivables and other receivables; including key assumptions in determining the
weighted-average loss rate.

17
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Notes to the Financial Statements - (cont'd)
5. Use of estimates and judgements - (cont'd)

A. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties - (cont'd)
i  Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of
fair values, both for financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable data as
far as possible.  Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy  based
on the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: input other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. as derived from prices).

 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note
29– Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management.

6. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Finance income and finance costs

The Company’s finance income and finance costs include:
 interest income;
 interest expense;
 the net gain or loss on financial assets at FVTPL;
 bank charges; and
 the foreign currency gain or loss on financial assets and financial liabilities.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective
interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:
–– the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
–– the amortised cost of the financial liability

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of
the liability. 

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

18



Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited
Annual Report

31 December 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements - (cont'd)
6. Significant accounting policies - (cont'd)
(b) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue primarily represents the sale of white products (such as Dual Purpose Kerosene
(DPK), Automotive Gas Oil (AGO) and Premium Motor Spirit(PMS), sale of Liquified
Petroleum Gas (LPG), commission earned from agency activities on behalf of the Company's
related parties: Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) and Duke Oil, commission
from Petroleum Equalization Fund (PEF) for the collection of statutory charges from marketers
and Freight Income.

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The
Company recognises revenue when it transfers control of goods and services to a customer. The
following table provides information about the timing of the satisfaction of performance
obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related
revenue recognition policies.

Category of revenue Nature and timing of satisfaction of
performance obligations, including
significant payment terms

Revenue recognition under
IFRS 15 

Revenue from sale of
White Products (such
as PMS, DPK, AGO)

Customers obtain control of the white
products (DPK, PMS, AGO) when they
lift these white products from the 3rd
party depots. 
Revenue is based on volume of products
sold and is recognised at a point in time. 
The Major and Coastal Marketers
typically lift products on credit while the
Independent (Cash and Carry) marketers
make payments for the products in
advance.
Invoices for the Coastal and Major
marketers are generated at point of lifting
and these invoices are payable within 15
days.

Revenue is recognised when
the products have been lifted
from 3rd party depots. 
The advances received from
Independent marketers are
included in contract
liabilities .

Revenue from sale of
Liquefied Petroleum
Gas (LPG)

Customers obtain control of the LPG
purchased when they lift the Company’s
LPG from its supplier’s premises. The
customers typically make payments in
advance and invoices (non-value added
tax bearing) are generated at point of
lifting. No discounts are provided and the
contract does not allow customers to
return the LPG purchased. 

Revenue is recognised when
the products have been lifted
from the Comany's premises. 
The advances received from
customers are included in
contract liabilities .
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Notes to the financial statements - (cont'd)
6.  Significant accounting policies- (cont'd)

Commission on sales

The Company assists its customers in
marketing their refined petroleum
products. The customers; NNPC and
Duke Oil are related parties of the
Company. Revenue is based on volume of
products sold and is recognised over time
as the Company makes sales on behalf of
the related parties.

Invoices (non-value added tax bearing)
are generated at the end of the period and
payment is immediately due for
collection.

The Company is an agent in
these transactions and
revenue is recognised at a
point in time as the services
are provided. The revenue is
determined as N1.10 per litre
of refined petroleum product
sold for NNPC, and as 50%
of the gross profit realised
from the sale of the refined
petroleum product for Duke
Oil.

Commission from the
collection of
Petroleum
Equalization Fund
bridging allowance

The Company assists Petroleum
Equalization Fund, a related party, in the
collection of Statutory charges (Petroleum
Equalization Fund Levy) from sale of
PMS to Coastal  marketers. Revenue is
based on statutory charges levied to the
marketers and is recognised over time as
the Company charges the marketers on
behalf of PEF.  

Invoices are issued to the marketers on
behalf of PEF for the statutory charges
and payment is immediately due for
collection.  

The Company is an agent in
these transactions and
revenue is recognised at a
point in time; once
collections are made.

 
(c) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated and recorded in the functional
currency (Nigerian Naira) at the spot exchange rates as of the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the
functional currency at the spot rates of exchange prevailing at that date. 

Foreign currency differences are generally recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally
recognized in profit or loss and presented within finance cost and income.
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(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

(i) Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment comprise tangible items that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods and services or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during
more than one accounting period. Land and buildings comprise of factories and offices.

Items of PPE are measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
PPE under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use including, where applicable,
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located
and borrowing costs on qualifying assets. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, and are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. 

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment which reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term in which case the
assets are depreciated over the useful life. 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Item Useful life
Computer equipment 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and Fittings 7 years
Other equipment 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted if appropriate. 

No depreciation is charged on capital work in progress. The attributable cost of each asset is
transferred to the relevant category at the point when the asset becomes ready for use and is
depreciated accordingly.
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(e)  Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its
relative standalone prices. 

However, for the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. 

In that case, the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. 

In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from
various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the
lease and type of the asset leased. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
 fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
 variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index

or rate as at the commencement date;
 amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
 the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to

exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the
Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.
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(e) Leases - (cont'd)

As a lessee - (cont'd)
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed
lease payment.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

From 1 January 2021, where the basis for determining future lease payments changes as
required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Company re-measures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using the revised discounted rate that reflects the change
to an alternate benchmark interest rate

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property
in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the
statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases of building that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

(f). Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities – recognition and initial
measurement

Trade receivables issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) – debt investment; FVOCI – equity investment;
or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.
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(f). Financial instruments - (cont'd)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

 it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cashflows; and

 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

Financial assets - Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. 

The information considered includes:

 the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

 how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

 the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

 how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

 the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

 the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as a profit margin.
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(f). Financial instruments - (cont'd)

Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest - (cont'd)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether
the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers:
 contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
 terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
 prepayment and extension features; and
 terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non recourse

features).
A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. 

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents
the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with
this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses.
Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair

value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is designated as such on
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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(f). Financial instruments - (cont'd)

(iii) Derecognition

     Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset. 

    Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. 

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(g) Equity

The Company has only one class of shares, ordinary shares. Ordinary shares are classified as
equity. When new shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their par value. The
excess of the issue price over the par value is recorded in the share premium reserve.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance
with IAS 12.

(h) Impairment

i) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, which are measured at 12-month ECLs.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. 
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(h). Impairment - (cont'd)

i) Non-derivative financial assets - (cont'd)

Financial instruments - (cont'd)

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

– the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

– the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable
data:

– significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

– a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or

– it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For
customers, the Company makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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(h). Impairment - (cont'd)

i) Non-derivative financial assets - (cont'd)

Write-off - (cont'd)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost.The Company considers evidence of impairment
for these assets at both an individual asset and a collective level. All individually significant
assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to be impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet individually
identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets with similar
risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical information on timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes adjustment if current economic and
credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested
by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance
account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the
asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.

(ii) Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
(other than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows of
other assets or Cash Generating Units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the
remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to
inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment
property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the
company’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-
sale or held for distribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss. 
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(h). Impairment - (cont'd)

(ii) Non-financial assets - (cont'd)

Once classified as held-for-sale and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised
or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

Non-current assets that cease to be classified as held for sale are measured the lower of the
carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation
that would have been recognised had the assets not been classified as held for sale and its
recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

(i) Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employee renders the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

ii) Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is an employee benefit obligation plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are
rendered by employees.

In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014, the Company has instituted a
defined contribution pension scheme for its employees. Employee contributions to the
scheme are funded through payroll deductions while the Company’s contribution is
recognised in profit or loss as employee benefit expense in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees. Employees contribute 7.5% each of their basic salary, transport
and housing allowances to the Fund on a monthly basis. The Company’s contribution is also
12.5% of each employee’s basic salary, transport and housing allowances. However,
effective July 2014, the employee and employer now contributes 8% and 15% respectively
of employees annual Salary (i.e. basic, housing, transport) to an approved Pension Fund
Administrator.

iii) Defined benefit plans

The Company participates in employee benefit plans offering retirement, death and
healthcare benefits. Except for healthcare benefits which are available to all employees,
these plans provide benefits based on various factors such as length of service, age and
compensation only for employees who have been in employment before 30 June 2014.

The Company operates a defined benefits plan for its employees. A defined benefit plan is a
pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation. The schemes are not funded by the Company.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets
in order to determine the net defined benefit liability.
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6. Significant accounting policies- (cont'd)

iii) Defined benefit plan - (cont'd)

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid and have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

iv) Other long term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

v) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Company recognizes costs for a
restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the
reporting date, then they are discounted.

(j) Provisions and contingent liabilities

i) Provisions

Provisions are liabilities that are uncertain in amount or timing. A provision is recognised
when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured based on management‘s best estimates of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligations. When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the reporting date of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is recognised as finance costs in profit or loss.

ii) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obligation
that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities
are only disclosed and not recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial position. If
the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible obligation is neither a
provision nor a contingent liability and no disclosure is made.
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(k) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense comprises current
tax (company income tax, tertiary education tax, Nigeria Police Trust Fund levy and  National
Agency for Science and Engineering Infrastructure (NASENI) Levy and deferred tax. It is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Company had determined that interest and penalties relating to income taxes, including
uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore are accounted
for under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income tax, if any. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and is
assessed as follows:

• Company income tax is computed on taxable profits;

• Tertiary education tax is computed on assessable profits; and

• Nigeria Police Trust Fund levy is computed as 0.005% on net profit (i.e. profit after
deducting all expenses and taxes from revenue earned by the company during the year).

• National Agency for Science and Engineering Infrastructure (NASENI) Levy which is
computed as 0.25% on the profit before tax.

Following the enactment of the Finance Act 2021, there has been an increase in the rate of
Tertiary Education Tax (TET) from 2% to 2.5%. This is computed on the Company's
assessable profits.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset if certain criteria are met. Total amount of tax
payable under CITA is determined based on the higher of two components namely Company
Income Tax (based on taxable income (or loss) for the year); and minimum tax. Taxes based
on profit for the period are treated as income tax in line with IAS 12.

ii) Minimum tax

Minimum tax which is based on a gross amount is outside the scope of IAS 12 and therefore,
are not presented as part of income tax expense in the profit or loss.

Minimum tax is determined as 0.5% of turnover. Where the minimum tax charge is higher
than the Company Income Tax (CIT), a hybrid tax situation exists. In this situation, the CIT
is recognised in the income tax expense line in the profit or loss and the excess amount is
presented above the income tax line as minimum tax.
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6. Significant accounting policies- (cont'd)

(k) Taxation - (cont'd)

Following the issue of the Finance Act 2020, the Federal government granted palliatives to
taxpayers by introducing a 50% reduction in minimum tax rate from 0.5% of gross turnover
less franked investment income to 0.25%. The reduced minimum tax rate is however
applicable for the Years of Assessment (YOA) due from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2022. 

The Company offsets the tax assets arising from withholding tax (WHT) credits and current
tax liabilities if, and only if, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and
written down to the extent that it is no longer probable that future economic benefits would
be realized.

iii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on
reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.

If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax
asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the business plans of the Company as approved by the
Board.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future profits will be available against which they can be
used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
(l) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Company's
inventories primarily consist of refined petroleum products and inventories in transit. Refined
petroleum products and Inventories in transit are carried at the lower of net realisable value and
cost determined under the Weighted Average Cost (WAC) and Total Purchase Cost incurred at
transaction date respectively.
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6. Significant accounting policies- (cont'd)

(l) Inventories - (cont'd)

Work in progress are intermediate products which are valued at lower of the actual cost plus
conversion costs and net realisable value. Costs include directly attributable costs incurred in
bringing inventories to the present location and condition for intended use by management. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with Central Bank of Nigeria and deposits
with commercial banks that have maturity periods not exceeding three months. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash
flows.

(n) Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing
activities of the Company as well as other income and expenses related to operating activities.
Operating profit excludes net finance costs and income taxes.

(o) Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. Changes in statement of
financial position items that have not resulted in cash flows have been eliminated for the
purpose of preparing the statement. Finance costs paid is also included in financing activities
while finance income received is included in investing activities.
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(p) Standards issued but not yet effective
A number of new Standards, Amendments to Standards, and Interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2022 and have
not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations which may be relevant to the
Company are set out below.
The Company does not plan to adopt these standards early. The standards will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory unless otherwise
indicated:
Standard/Interpretation Date issued

by IASB
Effective date periods beginning 
on or after

Summary of requirements and impact assessment

Amendments
to IAS

16

Property, Plant
and
Equipment:
Proceeds
before
Intended Use

May 2020 1 January 2022 The amendment prohibits deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced before its intended use by management.

As such, proceeds from selling items before the related item of
property, plant and equipment is available for use should be
recognised in profit or loss, together with the costs of producing those
items. IAS 2 Inventories should be applied in identifying and
measuring these production costs.

Companies will therefore need to distinguish between:
i. costs associated with producing and selling items before the item

of property,    plant and equipment is available for use; and
ii. costs associated with making the item of property, plant and

equipment available for its intended use.
Making this allocation of costs may require significant estimation and
judgement.
The amendments also clarify that testing whether an item of PPE is
functioning  properly means assessing its technical and physical
performance rather than assessing its financial performance – e.g.
assessing whether the PPE has achieved a certain level of operating
margin
The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022, with earlier application permitted. The
amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the
earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the
company first applies the amendments.
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Amendments
to
IAS 1

Classification
of
liabilities as
current
or non-current

January 2020 1 January 2023 Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as
current when they do not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
the reporting period. As part of its amendments, the Board has
removed the requirement for a right to be unconditional and instead,
now requires that  a right to defer settlement must have substance and
exist at the end of the reporting period.
There is limited guidance on how to determine whether a right has
substance and the assessment may require management to exercise
interpretive judgement.
The existing requirement to ignore management’s intentions or
expectations for   settling a liability when determining its
classification is unchanged.
The amendments also clarify how a company classifies a liability that
includes a counterparty conversion option, which could either be
recognised as either equity or liability separately from the liability
component under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023. Early
adoption is permitted.

Amendments
to IAS
1 and IFRS
Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure
Initiative:
Accounting
Policies

February
2021

1 January 2023 The amendments were issued to assist companies provide useful
accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:
i. requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies

rather than their significant accounting policies;
ii. clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial

transactions, other events or conditions are themselves immaterial
and as such need not be disclosed; and

iii. clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material
transactions, other events or conditions are themselves material to
a company’s financial statements;

The amendments are consistent with the refined definition of material:
“Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements”.
The amendments are effective from 1 January 2023
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Amendments
to
IAS 8

Definition of
Accounting
Estimates

February 
2023

1 January 2023 This amendment provides clarifications to companies on how to
distinguish   changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates, with a primary focus on the definition of and
clarifications on accounting estimates.

The amendment introduces a new definition for accounting estimates:
clarifying   that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarifies the following:
i. an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective

set out by an accounting policy.
ii. developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a

measurement technique (estimation or valuation technique) and
choosing the inputs to be   used when applying the chosen
measurement technique.

iii. a change in accounting estimate that results from new information
or new developments is not the correction of an error. In addition,
the effeDefinition of

Accounting
Estimates
February 2021
1 January 2023cts of a change in an input or a measurement technique
used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period
errors.
iv. a change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current

period’s profit   or loss, or the profit or loss of both the current
period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to the
current period is recognised as income or expense in the current
period. The effect, if any, on future periods is      recognised as
income or expense in those future periods.

The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged.
The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023,   and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company
applies the amendments.
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Amendment to
IAS 12

Deferred Tax
Related
to Assets and
Liabilities
Arising
from a Single
Transaction

May 2021 1 January 2023 The amendment clarifies that the initial recognition exemption does
not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. As a result, companies will need to recognise a deferred
tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
on initial recognition arising from these transactions.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the
associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognised
from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with
any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to   retained
earnings or other components of equity at that date. If an entity
previously accounted for deferred tax on these transactions using the
net approach, then the impact on transition is likely to be limited to the
separate presentation of the  deferred tax asset and the deferred tax
liability.
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7. Revenue from contracts with customers

a) Disaggregation of revenue with contracts with customers
The Company generates revenue primarily from the Sale of Petroleum Products directly to
marketers/retailers, Commission earned from agency duties on behalf of its parent - Nigerian
National Petroleum Company (NNPC) from 1 January 2021 to 30 June 2021 and another related
party - Duke Oil, Commission from the collection of Petroleum Equalization Fund bridging
allowance from Coastal and Major Marketers and Sale of Liquified Petroleum Gas (LPG).

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by timing of revenue recogition and
nature below:

Revenue by timing of recognition:
2021 2020 

NGN’000 NGN’000
Products and services transferred at a point in time 1,380,413,930 -
Products and services transferred at over time - 27,807,688

1,380,413,930 27,807,688

Revenue by nature:
2021 2020 

NGN’000 NGN’000
Sale of white petroleum products* 1,356,213,745 -
Sale of LPG** 323,536 -

1,356,537,281 -
Commission on sale of petroleum products 21,108,425 26,044,750
Commission from the collection of Petroleum
Equalization Fund bridging allowance 2,768,224 1,762,938
Total revenue 1,380,413,930 27,807,688

*On 30 June 2021, the Company ceased to supply and market petroleum products to
marketers/retailers on behalf of its parent company, NNPC. On 1 July 2021, the Company began
to supply and market these products directly to Marketers.

**The Company ceased to sell Liquified Petroleum Gas during the year as the Ex-LPG Sales
Agreement with Nigeria LNG Limited was novated to the related party, NNPC Retail Limited.

Segregation of the revenue earned from each marketer:
2021 2020  

NGN’000 NGN’000
Coastal marketers 996,595,489 -
Major marketers 224,559,339 -
Independent (Cash and Carry) marketers 135,382,453 -

1,356,537,281 -

Segregation of the revenue earned from the sale of petroleum products by product:
2021 2020  

NGN’000 NGN’000
Premium Motor Spirit 1,354,572,507 -
Automotive Gas Oil (AGO) 1,641,238 -
Liquified Petroleum Gas (LPG) 323,536 -

1,356,537,281 -

38



Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited
Annual Report

31 December 2021

Notes to the financial statements - (cont'd)
7. Revenue from contracts with customers - (cont'd)

b) Contract balances

Information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers at the
reporting date is as follows:

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020  
NGN’000 NGN’000

Receivables which are included in 'trade and other
receivables' (Note 17) 

64,401,477 66,057,008 

Contract liabilities (Note 7 (b)(i)) (158,688,775) (1,900,097) 

i. Contract liabilities

The movement in contract liabilities is as follows:
31 December 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
At 1 January 1,900,097 1,904,495
Migrated balance from the NNPC 129,835,779 -
Transferred to CHQ - (4,398)
Revenue recognised from prior year (1,836,551) -
Additons 1,087,519,281 -
Sales during the year (1,058,729,831) -
At 31 December 158,688,775 1,900,097

The contract liabilities primarily relate to advance consideration received from customers for
the sale of petroleum products (such as PMS, DPK, ATK, etc.). Hence, the performance
obligation is fufilled when the customer lifts the product.
On 30 June 2021, the Company ceased to act as an agent of NNPC and as such it gained the
rights to recognise contract liabilities in its books for the first time. The Company recognised
contract liability amounting to N 129.84 billion as at 30 June 2021 (Note 27).
The amount of N 1.84 billion recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the period
has been recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

c) Reconciliation of changes in contract liability to the statement of cash flows
31 December 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Opening balance (1,900,097) (1,904,495)
Migrated contract liabilities balance from CHQ (Note
27) (129,835,779) -
Closing balance 158,688,775 1,900,097
Contract liabilities in the statement of cash flows 26,952,899 (4,398)

8. Other income
2021 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Income on disposal of status car - 6,666
Miscellaneous income* 254,359 321,140

254,359 327,806

*Miscellaneous income relates mainly to proceeds from the renewal of bulk purchase agreements,
verification of outlets, change of truck information, bidding fees, and other logistics fees paid for
the purchase of petroleum products from the Company.
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9. Cost of Sales

2021 2020
Analysis by nature NGN’000 NGN’000
Maintenance services - 1,143,356
Security services 3,297,728 1,864,567
Personnel expenses 4,988,390 2,577,281
Finished refined white products 1,299,330,276 -
Water transport hire 11,392,811 -
Purchase of LPG 270,831 -
Transportation of petroleum products 1,118,423 -
Throughput charges 7,481,306 -
Tariff charges 4,130,083 -
Decanting transport expenses 12,417 -
Write off of inventory (Note 16)*** 91,749 -
Other selling expenses 28,963 53,801

1,332,142,977 5,639,005

*** Write off of inventory relates to the allowable product lost at the private depots.
10. Operating expenses

2021 2020

Analysis by nature:
NGN’000 NGN’000

Depreciation expense- PPE  (Note 13) 37,375 45,547
Depreciation expense -Right of use assets (Note 14) 6,373 38,242
Employee benefit expenses  11,125,952 11,253,147
Training expenses 378,045 296,594
Internal consumption 331,170 -
Repairs, maintenance and logistics 3,868,443 1,662,645
Consultancy fees** 1,583,346 812,076
Auditors' remuneration 75,000 70,000
Utility expenses 213,850 86,170
Travelling and entertainment 237,250 303,818
Legal fees 14,449 2,048
Licenses 38,886 -
Increase in provisions for litigations (Note 22) 1,000 -
Other taxes* 2,115,952 -
Board expenses 84,445 -
Underrecovery of PEF charges*** 511,162 -
Analytical services 105,260 -
Donations 2,500 10,363
Total operating expenses 20,730,458 14,580,650

*Other taxes mainly relates to the recognition of the outstanding PAYE and WHT on the upfront
allowance due to the Delta State Internal Revenue Service relating to the periods 2013-2019 as
well as the Edo State Internal Revenue Service relating to the periods 2017-2019 (Note 22).

** Included in Consultancy fees is N2.50 million relating to tax consultancy services provided by
KPMG Professional Services.

*** Underrecovery of PEF charges relates to wrong statutory PEF charges charged to the
customers that can no longer be recovered from the customers 
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11. Finance income and finance cost

(a) Finance income

2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Interest income on deposits - 21,852
Unwinding of discount on receivable from debt management
office 311,905 -
Unwinding of discount on staff loans - 269,432
Total finance income 311,905 291,284

(b) Finance cost
2021 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Bank charges 3,558 2,639
Day one loss on receivable from debt management office 801,638 -

805,196 2,639

12. Taxation

(a) Minimum tax

The Company has applied the provisions of the Companies Income Tax Act that mandates a
minimum tax assessment, where a tax payer does not have taxable profit which would generate an
eventual tax liability when assessed to tax. The Company's assessment based on the minimum tax
legislation for the year ended 31 December 2021 is N 3.45 billion (2020: N70.32 million).

2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Minimum tax 3,451,671 70,322

(b) Income tax expense

The Company is subject to tax under the Companies Income Tax (CIT) Act as amended to date.
Income tax charge for the year represents Tertiary Education Tax (TET) at 2.5% (2020: 2%) of
assessable profit, Nigeria Police Trust Fund levy which is computed as 0.005% of net profit as
the Company did not have taxable profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) and
the National Agency for Science and Engineering Infrastructure (NASENI) levy which is
computed as 0.25% of the profit before tax.

2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Tertiary Education Tax 784,163 178,942
Nigeria Police Trust Fund levy 861 192
NASENI Levy 42,958 -
Underprovision of Company income tax 651 -

828,633 179,134
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12. Taxation - (cont'd)

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax to statutory tax

The tax on the Company’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the statutory income tax rate as follows:

2021 2020
% NGN’000 % NGN’000

Profit before income tax 17,226,065 - 3,838,020
Income tax 30.0 5,167,820 30 1,151,406
TET 2.5 430,652 2 76,760
Non deductible expenses 5 847,660 11 433,188
Current year tax losses for which
no deferred tax asset was
recognised - - (36) (1,396,171)
Differences in unrelieved losses
related prior year - - - -
Tax incentives - -        (2) (86,241)
Nigeria Police Trust Fund Levy - 861 - 192
NASENI Levy - 42,958 - -
Underprovision of Company
income tax - 651 - -
Difference in TET ad CIT rate - 934 - -
Deductible temporary difference
for which no DT is recognised (24) (4,158,468) - -
Changes in estimates relating to
prior years (9) (1,504,435) - -

4.5 828,633 5 179,134

(d) Movement in current tax liability
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Balance at 1 January 484,758 932,731
Tax paid during the year (227,573) (697,429)

Charge for the year
Minimum tax (Note 12(a)) 3,451,671 70,322
Income tax charge (Note 12(b)) 828,633 179,134

4,537,489 484,758

(e) Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets amounting to NGN 85.53 billion (2020: NGN 93.61 billion) have not been
recognised in respect of unrelieved losses and deductible temporary differences as the directors
believe they are not able to determine with a reasonable degree of certainty that future taxable
profits would be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom. In addition,
the deferred tax assets was also not recognised due to the uncertainty around the determination of
carry forward tax losses and unutilized tax allowances attributable to the Company, arising from
the pending approval for the retention of tax losses and unutilized tax allowances associated with
the operations transferred to related parties from prior years. 

2021 2020
Gross Amount Tax effect Gross Amount Tax effect

NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Deductible temporary
differences 16,946,505 5,507,614 15,956,884 5,185,987
Tax losses (will never
expire) 68,580,806 22,288,762 77,655,634 25,238,081

85,527,311 27,796,376 93,612,518 30,424,068
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13. Property, plant and equipment

a) Reconciliation of carrying amount
NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000

Cost
Motor vehicles

Furniture and
Fittings

Computer
equipment

Other
equipment

Total  

At 1 January 2020 142,492 143,261 141,371 199 427,323
Additions 2,498 4,665 757 - 7,920
At 31 December 2020 144,990 147,926 142,128 199 435,243

At 1 January 2021 144,990 147,926 142,128 199 435,243
Additions - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 144,990 147,926 142,128 199 435,243

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 75,095 131,414 97,804 127 304,440
Charge for the year 32,440 6,090 6,997 20 45,547
At 31 December 2020 107,535 137,504 104,801 147 349,987

At 1 January 2021 107,535 137,504 104,801 147 349,987
Charge for the year 27,292 1,131 8,910 42 37,375
At 31 December 2021 134,827 138,635 113,711 189 387,362

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2020 67,397 11,847 43,567 72 122,883
At 31 December 2020 37,455 10,422 37,327 52 85,256
At 31 December 2021 10,163 9,291 28,417 10 47,881

b) The Company had no capital commitments at year end (2020: Nil).
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14. Right of use asset

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 82,857 82,857 
Additions - -
Balance as at 31 December 82,857 82,857

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1 January (76,484) (38,242)
Charge for the year (6,373) (38,242)
Balance as at 31 December (82,857) (76,484)

Carrying amounts
At 31 December - 6,373

15. Prepayments
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Prepaid employee benefits 642,968 491,725

642,968 491,725

Current portion 236,141 287,591
Non current portion 406,827 204,134

642,968 491,725

(a) Reconciliation of changes in prepayment to statement of cashflows
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Balance at 1 January 491,725 768,307
Balance at 31 December (642,968) (491,725)
Prepayments in the statement of cash flows (151,243) 276,582

16. Inventories
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Inventories in transit* 47,441,367 -
Finished goods 68,777,830 -
Work in progress** 1,317,687 -

117,536,884 -

* Inventories in transit relate to marine stock that have not been offloaded into the depots or sold
to coastal marketers.

** Work in progress relates to SLOP Oil which is the mixture of petroleum products, water and
fine solids.

The inventory is held at third parties depots and the related party, Nigerian Pipelines and Storage
Company Ltd (NPSC). The Company has inventory amounting to NGN 47.95 billion at various
NPSC depots across the country and the amount due to NPSC as storage fees amount to NGN
9.51 billion which has been disclosed as part of the amount due to the related party in Note
28(a). 

During the year, inventories of NGN 1.30 trillion were recognised as an expense and included in
‘costs of sales’.
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16. Inventories - (cont'd)

(a) Classification of finished goods
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Premium Motor Spirit ("PMS") 44,610,156 -
Automotive Gas Oil ("AGO") 22,691,346 -
Dual Purpose Kerosene ("DPK") 1,476,328 -

68,777,830 -
On 30 June 2021, the Company ceased to act as an agent of NNPC and as such it gained the
rights to recognise inventory in its books for the first time. The Company recognised inventory
amounting to NGN 145.47 billion as at 30 June 2021 (Note 27).

(b) Reconciliation of inventory to statement of cash flows
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Balance at 1 January - -
Write off of inventory (91,749) -
Migrated inventories balance from CHQ (Note 27) 145,469,503 -
Balance at 31 December (117,536,884) -
Inventories in the statement of cash flows 27,840,870 -

17. Trade and other receivables
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Trade receivables (Note 17(a)) 42,999,812 -
Due from related parties (Note 17(b)) 18,522,043 64,932,067
Staff loans and advances to employees 1,028,242 1,053,480
Advances to trade vendors 71,461 71,461
Promissory note from the debt management office (Note
(Note 17(d))

1,779,919 -

64,401,477 66,057,008

Non-current 1,779,919 -
Current 62,621,558 66,057,008

64,401,477 66,057,008
On 30 June 2021, the Company ceased to act as an agent of NNPC and as such it gained the rights
to recognise trade and other receivables in its books for the first time. The Company recognised
trade and other receivables amounting to N 8.07 billion as at 30 June 2021 (Note 27).

(a) Trade receivables

NGN’000 NGN’000
Gross trade receivables 49,739,509 -
Impairment allowance on trade receivables 
(Note 29(B)(i)(b)) (6,739,697) -

42,999,812 -

45



             Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited
Annual Report

31 December 2021

Notes to the financial statements - (cont'd)
17. Trade and other receivables - (cont'd)

b) Due from related parties
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Due from related parties (Note 28 (a)) 19,342,417 68,216,634
Impairment allowance on related party receivables (Note
29(B)(i)(c))

(820,374) (3,284,567)

18,522,043 64,932,067

c) Other receivables

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Other receivables 5,798,993 -
Impairment allowance on other receivables (Note
29(B)(i)(c)) (5,798,993) -

- -

d) Promissory note from the debt management office
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Promissory note from the debt management office 1,779,919 -
Impairment allowance on the promissory note from the
debt management office - -

1,779,919 -

i) Analysis of the closing balance for the promissory note from the debt management
office

The promissory note from the debt management office ("DMO") has been measured at fair
value and measured at amortized cost. It was issued by the DMO to cover for a default from
customers migrated to the Company from the NNPC. It has been amortized over the maturity
period of 4 years. This receivable is backed by the full faith and credit of the Federal
Government of Nigeria and charged upon the general assets of Nigeria. This promissory note
has a face value of N 2.27 billion and there is no interest rate attached to the note. The maturity
date is the 25 March 2024 and using the Monetary Policy Rate ("MPR") of 11.5%, the
Company recognised a present value of N 1.47 billion on the promissory note from the DMO.

Using the MPR, the Company recognised unwinding of discount on the promissory note of N
0.31 billion during the year and the closing balance for this receivable amounted to N 1.78
billion.

46



             Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited
Annual Report

31 December 2021

Notes to the financial statements - (cont'd)
17. Trade and other receivables - (cont'd)

i) Analysis of the closing balance for the promissory note from the debt management
office - (cont'd)

The analysis of the closing balance for the promissory note from the debt management office is
as follows:

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Face value of Promissory note from the debt management
office 2,269,652 -
Day one loss on receivable from debt management office
(Note 11(b)) (801,638) -
Present value of Promissory note from the debt
management office 1,468,014 -
Unwinding of discount on receivable from debt
management office (Note 11(a)) 311,905 -
Closing balance 1,779,919 -

e) Reconciliation of changes in trade and other receivables to statement of cash flows
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Balance at 1 January 66,057,008 57,451,743
Balance at 31 December (64,401,477) (66,057,008)
Net benefits transferred (Note 21(h)) 2,647,194 903,805
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables (Note
29(B)(i)) (10,074,497) (4,366,464)
Migrated other receivables balance from CHQ (Note 27) 8,068,645 -
Migrated trade receivables balance from CHQ (Note 27) 59,876,280 -
Write down to present value of the promissory note from
debt management office (Note 11(b)) (801,638) -
Unwinding of discount on receivables due from the Debt
Management Office (Note 11(a)) 311,905 -

61,683,420 (12,067,924)

18. Cash and cash equivalents

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Bank balances held with the Central Bank 592,557,024 12,298,667
592,557,024 12,298,667

Impairment loss on cash and cash equivalents (Note 29(B)(i) (1,001) -
592,556,023 12,298,667

19. Share capital
(a) Share capital comprise:

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Authorised, issued, called-up and fully paid
5 million ordinary shares of N1 each 5,000 5,000

All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. The holders of ordinary
shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one
vote per share at the general meetings of the Company.
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19. Share capital - (cont'd)

(b) Other reserves

Other reserves amounting to N423,143,396 (2020: N423,143,396) represents non-reciprocal
contribution via conversion of debt owed to the parent company, Nigerian National Petroleum
Corporation (NNPC) to equity.

(c) Capital contribution
Capital contribution amounting to N 63.67 billion represents the parent company's
contribution via the migration of inventories, trade and other payables, trade and other
receivables and contract liability balances to equity (Note 27)

20. Trade and other payables
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Trade payables 3,061,633 996,851
Due to related parties (Note 28(a)) 466,898,082 17,041,898
Accrued expenses 576,441 689,143
Other payables 7,033,430 2,476,931

477,569,586 21,204,823
Statutory deductions* 889,546 416,709

478,459,132 21,621,532

* Based on the Tax advice received, the Board of Directors is of the view that Value Added Tax
(VAT) does not apply to the Company's revenue.
On 30 June 2021, the Company ceased to act as an agent of NNPC and as such it gained the
rights to recognise PPPRA and PEF liability resulting from the sale of petroleum products
directly to the Marketers in its books for the first time. The Company recognised these liabilities
amounting to NGN 19.91 billion as at 30 June 2021 (Note 27)

a) Reconciliation of changes in trade and other payables to statement of cash flows is as
follows:

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Balance at 1 January (21,621,532) (20,743,959)
Purchase of PPE unpaid as at year end - (7,919)
Benefits paid by the Corporation (Note 21(e)) (6,112,322) (3,837,345)
Migrated trade and other payables from CHQ (Note 27) (19,912,376) -
Balance at 31 December 478,459,132 21,621,532

430,812,902 (2,967,691)

21. Employee benefits obligation

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Long-service award (Note 21 (a)) 298,729 356,633
Pension benefits (Note 21 (b)) 14,319,246 23,689,819
Gratuity benefits (Note 21 (b)) 15,902,862 16,584,160
Post employment medical benefits 489,110 1,004,754

31,009,947 41,635,366

Non-current 27,394,802 36,671,439
Current 3,615,145 4,963,927

31,009,947 41,635,366
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21. Employee benefits obligation - (cont'd)

Included in profit or loss (as part of administrative expenses):
Long-service award (5,598) 107,102
Pension benefits 2,848,321 2,141,951
Gratuity benefits 1,952,111 2,232,095
Post employment medical benefits 127,148 87,139

4,921,982 4,568,287

Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial(gain)/ losses (12,082,273) 13,951,799

The Company operates defined benefit pension plan based on employee pensionable remuneration
and length of service. 

(a) Long service awards (LSA)

This scheme entitles all confirmed employees to a monetary reward amounting to a certain
percentage of their total annual emolument. The independent actuarial valuation was performed
by Ernst & Young Nigeria (FRC/2012/NAS/00000000738) using the projected unit credit
method.

(b) Pension and Gratuity benefits

The Company's employees who have worked at least 10 years and have been in employment
before 30 June 2014 are entitled to a certain percentage of their total annual emolument upon
retirement or end of contract for pension plan.

Employees who have worked at least 5 years and have been in employment before 30 June 2014
are entitled to a certain percentage of their total annual emolument upon retirement or end of
contract for gratuity. Retirees and their spouses are entitled to medical benefit per annum. The
measurement is based upon an independent actuarial valuation performed by Ernst & Young
Nigeria using the projected unit credit method as prescribed by IAS 19.
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(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:

31 December 2021 Long-service Pension Gratuity Medical Total
Net benefit expense (recognised in admin. expenses) NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Current service cost 14,562 962,079 700,627 43,185 1,720,453
Interest cost on benefit obligation 25,668 1,886,242 1,251,484 83,963 3,247,357
Actuarial gain (45,828) - - - (45,828)
Net benefit (gain)/expense (5,598) 2,848,321 1,952,111 127,148 4,921,982

31 December 2020 Long-service Pension Gratuity Medical Total
Net benefit expense NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Current service cost 11,591 512,117 568,552 21,525 1,113,785
Interest cost on benefit obligation 36,761 1,629,834 1,663,543 65,614 3,395,752
Actuarial losses 58,750 - - - 58,750 
Net benefit expense 107,102 2,141,951 2,232,095 87,139 4,568,287

(d) The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

At 31 December 2021 Long-service Pension Gratuity Medical Total
NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000

Employee benefit obligation 298,729 14,319,246 15,902,862 489,110 31,009,947
Net liability 298,729 14,319,246 15,902,862 489,110 31,009,947

At 31 December 2020 Long-service Pension Gratuity Medical Total
NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000

Employee benefit obligation 356,633 23,689,819 16,584,160 1,004,754 41,635,366
Net liability 356,633 23,689,819 16,584,160 1,004,754 41,635,366
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(e) Movement in the present value of the employee benefit obligation over the year is as follows:
Long-service Pension Gratuity Medical Total

NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
At 1 January 2020 288,441 12,167,387 13,103,727 489,265 26,048,820

Transfer-in* 45,634 2,283,823 2,507,828 92,298 4,929,583
Transfer-out** (52,695) (1,737,771) (2,101,615) (68,676) (3,960,757)
Current service cost 11,591 512,117 568,552 21,525 1,113,785
 Interest cost 36,761 1,629,834 1,663,543 65,614 3,395,752
Actuarial losses due to assumptions 65,060 8,219,847 3,543,896 505,173 12,333,976
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to experience (6,310) 3,030,407 (1,312,100) (35,424) 1,676,573
Benefits paid by the Corporation (CHQ) (31,849) (2,415,825) (1,389,671) - (3,837,345)
Estimated medical costs - - - (65,021) (65,021)
At 31 December 2020 356,633 23,689,819 16,584,160 1,004,754 41,635,366

At 1 January 2021 356,633 23,689,819 16,584,160 1,004,754 41,635,366

Transfer-in* 65,569 4,418,771 3,247,677 162,178 7,894,195
Transfer-out** (37,585) (2,892,846) (2,060,028) (102,638) (5,093,097)
Current service cost 14,562 962,079 700,627 43,185 1,720,453
Interest cost 25,668 1,886,242 1,251,484 83,963 3,247,357
Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to assumptions (61,352) (12,209,366) (4,194,931) (480,934) (16,946,583)
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to experience 15,524 2,341,068 2,529,384 (67,494) 4,818,482
Benefits paid by the Corporation (CHQ) (80,290) (3,876,521) (2,155,511) - (6,112,322)
Estimated medical costs - - - (153,904) (153,904)
At 31 December 2021 298,729 14,319,246 15,902,862 489,110 31,009,947

*This relates to staff that have been transferred into the Company from other service business unit within the Corporation

**This relates to staff that have been transferred out of the Company to other service business unit within the Corporation
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(f) The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Long service

award Pension Gratuity
Post-Retirement

Medical
% % % %

Discount rate 13 14 14 14
Future salary increase 12 7 12 -  
Rate of inflation 12 12 12 12
Rate of future benefit
increase

6 4 4 6

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuarial advice, published
statistics and experience in the industry. Discount rate decreased from 8% in 2020 to 12% in 2021.
All other assumptions remained constant.  

(g) The sensitivities of the overall employee benefit obligation to 1% change discount rate
in the following assumptions are presented  below:

Long service
award Pension Gratuity

Post-
Retirement

Medical
NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000

Base 298,729 14,319,246 15,902,862 489,110
Discount rate +1% 284,661 13,040,291 15,320,832 441,146

-1% (305,249) (15,803,000) (16,530,689) (545,416)
Future salary
increase +1% 303,745 - 14,642,842 -

-1% (285,922) - (13,224,741) -
Restricted
salary increase +1% - 13,647,479 - -

-1% - (12,482,869) - -
Benefit/Pension
Escalation Rate +1% 297,675 - - 551,730

-1% (291,787) - - (435,511)
Future pension
increase +1% - 15,359,408 - -

-1% - (13,394,453) - -
Life Expectancy Improve

by 1 year 295,726 14,519,072 15,900,180 497,935
Worsen
by 1 year (294,120) (1,411,473) (15,905,827) (480,143)

(h) Reconciliation of net benefits transferred to statement of cash flows is as follows:

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Transfer-in 7,894,195 4,929,583
Transfer-out (5,093,097) (3,960,757)
Estimated medical costs (153,904) (65,021)

2,647,194 903,805
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2020 Legal Other taxes Total
NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000

At 1 January 153,300 - 153,300
Provision made during the year - - -
Utilization during the year - - -
At 31 December 153,300 - 153,300

2021 Legal Other taxes Total
NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000

At 1 January 153,300 - 153,300
Provision made during the year (Note 10) 1,000 2,115,952 2,116,952
Utilization during the year - (1,618,645) (1,618,645)
At 31 December 154,300 497,307 651,607

(a) Legal

Provision for litigation takes into consideration an independent assessment performed by the
Company's legal solicitors engaged to represent the Company on those cases. The provision made
are for cases where the claims are evaluated as probable. See Note 25.

(b) Other taxes

Provision for other taxes represents the Directors best estimate of tax liabilities evaluated as
probable for which finalization of the settlement amount is ongoing.

23. Staff and staff related costs

i) Employee costs during the year amounted to:
2021 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Wages and salaries* 10,215,595 7,743,720
Pension costs - employer contributions 976,765 1,518,421
Defined benefit expense (Note 21) 4,921,982 4,568,287

16,114,342 13,830,428

*Wages and salaries includes personnel expenses recharged from NNPC amounting to N 2.48
billion (2020: N 7.74 billion).

ii) Number of employees of the Company, other than directors, whose duties were wholly or
mainly discharged in Nigeria, received remuneration (excluding pension contributions) in the
following ranges:

Number Number
N2,000,001      -          N3,000,000 - -
N3,000,001      -          N4,000,000 - -
N4,000,001      -          N5,000,000 - -
N5,000,001      -          N15,000,000 47 29
N15,000,001    -        N25,000,000 146 146
N25,000,001    -        N40,000,000 35 56
Above N40,000,000 18 18

246 249

*Salary band does not include statutory recharges from NNPC CHQ
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iii) The average number of full-time persons employed by the Company during the year was
as follows:

Number Number
Management staff 38 21
Senior staff 198 217
Junior staff 10 11

246 249

24  Lease liability

Lease liabilities are wholly in respect of the Company's lease obligations for its annex office in
Ikoyi, Lagos.
31 December 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Balance as at 1 January - 40,467
Payment of lease liability - (40,467)
Interest expense - -
Balance as at 31 December - -

25 Contingent liabilities

Pending litigation and claims

The Company is subject to various claims as at 31 December 2021 amounting to N18.95 billion
(2020: N3.19 billion) which arose in the normal course of business and are being handled by the
Company's legal solicitors. The Directors based on a review of the circumstances of each claim
and advice of external solicitor believe that the Company has a probable risk of loss amounting
to N154.30 million (2020: N153.30 million) and a possible exposure to losses (contingent
liabilities) amounting to N516.60 million (2020: N815.51 million).

With respect to claims assessed as probable, the Directors have recorded a provision of N 154.30
million (Note 22), and claims assessed as remote, no provision is recorded and no contingent
liability is disclosed.

Pending other taxes and claims
The Company is subject to various claims as at 31 December 2021 amounting to N 60.92 billion
(2020: Nil) which arose in the normal course of business and are being handled by the
Company's tax advisors. The Directors, based on a review of the circumstances of each claim
and advice of the tax advisors, believe that the Company has a probable risk of loss amounting to
N 497.31 million (2020: Nil) and a possible exposure to losses (contingent liabilities) amounting
to N 58.17 billion (2020: Nil). Therefore, the Directors have recorded a provision of N 497.31
million (2020: Nil) in the financial statements (Note 22).

26 Events after the reporting date

Subsequent to the year end, it was discovered that the Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) supplied to the
public had been contaminated with high content of Methanol and this resulted in the damage of
cars throughout the Country. The product had a tendency to damage equipment it is used in and as
such the Company working with the Marketers sought to withdraw the products from the market.
As at date of these financial statements, the overrall cost of this event is yet to be determined. 
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In addition, on the 30 June 2022, the assets and liabilities of the parent company, Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) would be transferred to the newly incorporated Company,
Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) Limited which is attributable to the Petroleum
Industrial Act (PIA). As such the ownership of the Company would be transferred from the
Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) to Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation
(NNPC) Limited. The assessement of the impact of the PIA on the Company by the Directors is
still 

The Directors are of the view that the event does not have an impact on the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

27 Change in business model

The Company ceased to act as an agent for its parent company, the Nigerian National Petroleum
Corporation (NNPC) during the year and became a principal on major transactions. The effective
date was approved by the Top Management Committee (TMC) to be 30 June 2021. The Company
also obtained the rights to hold stock of petroleum products. 

As a result of the financial autonomy, the following balances were migrated from the parent
Company NNPC on 30 June 2021.

30 June 2021
NGN’000

Inventories 145,469,503
Trade receivables 59,876,280
Other receivables 8,068,645
Other payables (19,912,376)
Contract liabilities (129,835,779)
Capital contribution 63,666,273

Due to the migration of assets to the Company, it has recognised the following gains or losses in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

NGN’000
Impairment loss on receivables from a counterparty (Note 17(c)) 5,798,993
Write down to present value of the promissory note from debt management
office (Note 11(b)) 801,638
Unwinding of discount on receivables due from the Debt Management
Office (Note 11(b)) (311,905)
Net Impact in Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income 6,288,726
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The parent company of Petroleum Products Marketing Company Limited is Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) and it owns 99.96% of the
issued share capital of  the Company as at the end of the reporting year. Significant related party transactions were in respect of funds transferred from
the parent company (NNPC) and other third party transactions entered into for/on behalf of related parties.

Transactions with related entities entered into by the Company consist mainly of supply of services, the purchase of goods and transfer of staff and staff
loans. These transactions are an integral part of the ordinary course of its business and are carried out at conditions which would be applied between
willing and independent parties. All transactions were carried out for the mutual benefit of the parties involved. The amounts due to/ (from) related
parties are shown as follows:

(a) Transactions with related entities
2021 2020

Balances Transactions Balances Transactions
Receivables Payables Income Purchases Receivables Payables Income Purchases

NNPC Subsidiaries NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Nigerian National Petroleum
Corporation (NNPC) (Note
28(a)) 

- 375,288,559 (11,904,224) 1,294,561,634 53,312,459 - 18,272,445 -

Nigerian Pipelines and Storage
Company Ltd (NPSC) (Note
28(a)) 

15,023,701 17,261,542 (7,811) 68,487 6,111,325 9,520,200 (36,499) (38,599)

National Petroleum Investment
Management Services
(NAPIMS) (Note 28(a)) 

146,342 - (20,767) 128,036 39,073 - 9,356 -

Integrated Data Services
Limited (IDSL) (Note 28(a)) 

12,141 - - - 12,141 - (1,993) -

Nigerian Petroleum
Development Company (NPDC)
(Note 28(a)) 

14,537 - (2,815) - 17,351 - 9,247

Hydrocarbon Services (Nigeria)
Limited - (HYSON)
(Note 28(a)) 

- - - - 999 - - -

Duke Oil Co. Inc (Note 28(a)) 3,853,379 - (9,204,201) - 8,723,286 - (5,447,965) -
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Kaduna Refining &
Petrochemical Company Ltd
(KRPC) (Note 28(a)) 

- 79,439 (2,183) 6,288 - 83,544 - 19,640

Port Harcourt Refining
Company Limited (PHRC)
(Note 28(a)) 

- 68,426 (4,325) 2,465 - 66,566 - 6,396

Warri Refining & Petrochemical
Company Ltd (WRPC) (Note
28(a)) 

- 18,906 (3,000) 2,938 - 18,844 - (9,113)

Nigerian Gas Company (NGC)
(Note 28(a)) 

- 30,906 - 5,689 - 36,595 - 3,830

Marine Logistics (ML) (Note
28(a)) 

- 11,391,425 - 11,391,425 - - - -

NNPC Retail (Note 28(a)) 292,317 - - - - - - -
National Engineering and
Technical Company Ltd
(NETCO) (Note 28(a)) 

- 5,563 - - - 5,563 - -

Other entities
Petroleum Equalization Fund
(Note 28(a)) 

- 62,753,316 (2,768,224) - - 7,310,586 - 4,243,783

19,342,417 466,898,082 (23,917,550) 1,306,166,962 68,216,634 17,041,898 12,804,591 4,225,937
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(a) Transactions with related entities-(cont'd)

Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC):  NNPC  is the parent company to PPMC.
The NNPC is ultimately controlled by the Federal Government of Nigeria. PPMC's primary
activity is the supply and marketing of refined petroleum products to marketers/retailers on
behalf of NNPC. Transactions during the year relates to the commission earned by the
Company from the sale of petroleum products on behalf of NNPC as an agent.

The total reconciled petroleum products in litres sold by the Company on behalf of NNPC
during the year and which formed the basis of commission paid to the Company is 10.82 billion
litres with a total value of NGN1.41 trillion and from which the Company earned a commission
of N11.90 billion (2020: 18.17 billion litres; Value: NGN2.02 trillion Commission:N19.98
billion).

During the year, the Company ceased to act as an agent of the NNPC and became financially
autonomous. Hence, the Company became principally engaged to supply and market refined
petroleum products to marketers/retailers as a principal. The Company also obtained the rights
to hold stock of petroleum products.

As a result of the financial autonomy, balances were migrated from the parent Company NNPC
on 30 June 2021 (Note 27). In additon, the Company had recharged the product loss of N 7.60
billion to the parent company, NNPC.

There was also no write off of disputed revenue from sale of LPG in current year (2020:N1.15
billion). Amount due to Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC) as at 31 December
2021 is N 375.29 billion (2020: Nil). See Note 28(a).

Warri Refining & Petrochemical Company Ltd: Warri Refining & Petrochemical Company
Ltd based in Warri, Delta State  is one of the subsidiaries of the Parent Company, Nigerian
National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year include transfer of staff
and all other staff related cost (car loan). Amount due to Warri Refining & Petrochemical
Company Ltd is N18.91 million (2020: N18.84 million). See Note 28(a).

National Petroleum Investment Management Services (NAPIMS): The National Petroleum
Investment Management Services (NAPIMS) is one of the subsidiaries of Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year relate to transfers of staff and all
other staff related cost (car loan). Amount due from National Petroleum Investment
Management Services (NAPIMS) as at 31 December 2021  is N 146.34 million (2020: N39.07
million). See Note 28(a).

Integrated Data Services Limited (IDSL): Integrated Data Services Limited (IDSL) was
established in 1988 as a subsidiary company of the NNPC. Transactions during the year relate
to transfers of staff and all other staff related cost (car loan). Amount due from Integrated Data
Services Limited is N12.14 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: N12.14 million). See Note
28(a).

Nigerian Petroleum Development Company Limited (NPDC): The Nigerian Petroleum
Development Company Limited (NPDC) is one of the subsidiaries of the Parent Company,
Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). It is Headquartered in Benin, Edo State,
southern Nigeria. Transactions during the year include transfer of staff and all other staff related
cost (car loan). Amount due from National Petroleum Development Company Limited is
N14.54 million as at 31 Decmber 2021 (2020: N17.35 million). See Note 28(a).
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(a) Transactions with related entities-(cont'd)

Nigeria Liquified Natural Gas Limited (NLNG): NLNG  is an affiliate of Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year relate to the purchase of LPG.
See Note 28(a).

National Nigerian Retail Company Limited (NNPC Retail): The National Nigerian Retail
Company Limited (NNPC Retail) is one of the subsidiaries of Nigerian National Petroleum
Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year relate to sale of white products, purchase
and sale of LPG on behalf of the related party, transfers of staff and all other staff related cost
(car loan). NNPC Retail enjoyed the use of the Company's bank guarantee on the Ex-LPG
Agreement with the Nigeria Liquified Natural Gas Limited (NLNG Limited) till its expiry date
on 30 September 2021 at no cost. Amount due from National Petroleum Investment
Management Services (NAPIMS) as at 31 December 2021  is N 0.29 billion (2020: Nil). See
Note 28(a).

Nigerian Pipelines and Storage Company Ltd (NPSC): National Pipelines and Storage
Company is a subsidiary carved out of PPMC as a new subsidiary. The delineation process took
place in 2018. All Assets and Liabilities of the Old PPMC was shared between NPSC & PPMC.
Some of the staff of the old PPMC were moved to NPSC and some in the PPMC. Transactions
during the year include transfer of staff and all other staff related cost (car loan). Amount due
from Nigerian Pipelines and Storage Company Ltd (NPSC) as at 31 December 2021 is N 15.02
billion (2020: N6.11 billion) and the amount due to Nigerian Pipelines and Storage Company
Ltd (NPSC) as at 31 December 2021 is N17.26  billion (2020: N9.52 billion). See Note 28(a).

Kaduna Refining & Petrochemical Company (KRPC): Kaduna Refining & Petrochemical
Company (KRPC) is one of the subsidiaries of the Parent Company, Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year include transfer of staff and all
other staff related cost (car loan). Amount due to Kaduna Refining & Petrochemical Company
(KRPC) as at 31 December 2021 is N79.44 million (2020: N83.54 million). See Note 28(a).

Port Harcourt Refining Company Limited: The Port Harcourt Refining Company Limited  is
one of the subsidiaries of the Parent Company, Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation
(NNPC). It is Headquartered in Port Harcourt metropolitan area of Rivers State, southeastern
Nigeria. Transactions during the year include transfer of staff and all other staff related cost (car
loan). Amount due to Port Harcourt Refining Company Limited as at 31 December 2021 is N
68.43 million (2020: N66.57 million). See Note 28(a).

Nigerian Gas Company: Nigerian Gas Company is one of the subsidiaries of Nigerian
National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year include transfer of staff
and all other staff related cost (car loan). Amount due to Nigerian Gas Company as at 31
December 2021 is N 30.91 million (2020: N36.60 million). See Note 28(a).

National Engineering and Technical Company Ltd (NETCO): NETCO is one of the
subsidiaries of Nigerian National Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). There were no transactions
with the Company during the year. Amount due to National Engineering and Technical
Company Ltd (NETCO) as at 31 December 2021 is N 5.56 million (2020: N5.56 million). See
Note 28(a).

Duke Oil Co. Inc: Duke Oil is one of the subsidiaries of Nigerian National Petroleum
Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year relates to the commission earned by the
Company from the sale of petroleum products on behalf of Duke Oil as an agent. Amount due
from Duke Oil Co. Inc as at 31 December is N 3.85 billion (2020: Nil). See Note 28(a).

Marine Logistics (ML): Marine Logistics is one of the subsidiaries of Nigerian National
Petroleum Corporation (NNPC). Transactions during the year relates to the costs incurred on the
transportation of petroleum products to the depots. Amount due to Marine Logistics (ML) as at
31 December is N 11.39 billion (2020: Nil). See Note 28(a).
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28. Related party disclosures - (cont'd)

(a) Transactions with related entities-(cont'd)

Petroleum Equalization Fund (PEF): PPMC serves as an agent to PEF in assisting with the
collection of bridging allowance from Coastal marketers. Transactions during the year includes
the collection of statutory charges from designated marketers. Amount due to Petroleum
Equalization Fund as at 31 December is N 62.75 billion (2020: N 7.31 billion ). See Note 28(a).

(b) Transactions with Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any
director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity. In the Company, the key management
personnel are the company's directors and management staff.

Loans to key management personnel

The Company did not grant any loans to or receive any loans from any key management
personnel.

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel of the Company include the Directors. The Company paid total
compensation of N410.58 million  (2020: N366.43 million) to the key management personnel.

Key management personnel and director transactions

The Directors did not  have any shareholding in the Company as at 31 December 2021. (2020:
Nil).

No key management personnel, or their related parties, holds positions in other entities that
result in them having control or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of
an entity. Directors of the Company do not purchase goods from the Company.

Directors' emoluments
The remuneration paid to the Directors of the Company was as follows:

2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Salaries and other short-term benefits 231,439 242,495
Post employment benefits 178,408 118,611
Other long term benefits 735 5,324

410,582 366,430
  The emolument of the highest paid director amounted to N81.30 million (2020: N71.92 million).

Other Directors received emoluments (excluding pension contributions) in the following ranges:
Number Number

  Nil 5 5
 N8,000,000 to N10,000,000 3 3
 N60,000,000 to N90,000,000 1 2

9 10
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities
not measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition, because the carrying amounts are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values.

The Company's financial instruments are categorised as follows:

31 December 2021
Carrying amount

Note

Financial 
assets at

 amortised cost

Other
financial
liabilities Total

NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Financial assets not measured at fair
value
Trade and other receivables 17 64,401,477 - 64,401,477
Cash and cash equivalents 18 592,556,023 - 592,556,023

656,957,500 - 656,957,500

Financial liabilities not measured at
fair value
Trade and other payables 20 - 477,569,586 477,569,586

- 477,569,586 477,569,586

31 December 2020
Carrying amount

Note

Financial 
assets at

 amortised cost

Other
financial
liabilities Total

NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Financial assets not measured at fair
value
Trade and other receivables 17 66,057,008 - 66,057,008
Cash and cash equivalents 18 12,298,667 - 12,298,667

78,355,675 - 78,355,675

Financial liabilities not measured at
fair value
Trade and other payables 20 - 21,204,823 21,204,823

- 21,204,823 21,204,823
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management - (cont'd)

B. Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

 credit risk

 liquidity risk

 market risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables  from customers, staff debtors and other related party receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets and contract assets represents the maximum credit
exposure.

Impairment losses on financial assets recognised in profit or loss were as follows:
Note 2021 2020

NGN’000 NGN’000
Impairment loss on trade receivables 17(a) 6,739,697 -
(Reversal of)/Impairment loss on related
party receivables 29B.(i)c) (2,464,193) 4,366,464
Impairment loss on other receivables 17(c) 5,798,993 -

10,074,497 4,366,464
Impairment loss on cash and cash equivalents 1,001 -

10,075,498 4,366,464
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management - (cont'd)

B. Financial Risk Management - (cont'd)

(i) Credit risk-(cont'd)

a) Trade receivables and other receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual 
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that 
may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated 
with the industry and country in which customers operate.
The Company's Board of Directors has established a credit policy under which each 
customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the Company's standard 
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes 
external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, 
industry information and in some cases bank references. The Company limits its 
exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum payment 
period of 15 days to major marketers. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers 
are grouped according to their credit characteristics.
The Company does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. The 
Company does not have trade receivable for which no loss allowance is recognised 
because of collateral.
At 31 December 2021, the exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by type 
of counterparty was as follows.

Note 2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Gross trade receivables 17(a) 49,739,509 -

Impairment allowance on trade receivables 17(a) (6,739,697) -

Net trade receivables 42,999,812 -
Gross receivables due from related parties 17(b) 19,342,417 68,216,634

Impairment allowance on related party receivables 17(b) (820,374) (3,284,567)
Net trade and related party receivables 61,521,855 64,932,067
Other receivables 17(c) 5,798,993 -

Impairment allowance on other receivables 17(c) (5,798,993) -

61,521,855 64,932,067
Receivable from debt management office 17(d) 1,779,919 -
Staff loans and advances to employees 17 1,028,242 1,053,480
Advances to trade vendors 17 71,461 71,461

64,401,477 66,057,008
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management - (cont'd)

B. Financial Risk Management - (cont'd)

(i) Credit risk-(cont'd)

b) Expected credit loss assessement for customers

 Trade receivables

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to external
ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow projections
and available press information about customers) and applying experienced credit
judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors
that are indicative of the risk of default and are aligned to external credit rating
definitions from agencies.

Credit enchancements

The Company had existing bank guarantees ("credit enchancements") amounting to
NGN 14.50 billion received from three (3) marketers as at year end. These guarantees
are obtained by the Company's customers before the issuance of the bulk purchase
agreeement so as to reduce the probability of default from its customers. These
guarantees are held with banks that have good credit ratings issued by reputable
international rating agencies. The maximum exposure of these credit enchancements
to the gross receivables from these marketers is NGN 14.50 billion.

The following table shows information about the exposure of the credit
enchancements to the gross receivables from these marketers.

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Gross receivables 16,124,513 -
Utilized credit enchancements (11,267,147) -
Impact of net receivables subject to impairment 4,857,366 -

The Company used the provision matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables
from each segment of customers.

Loss rates are calculated using a 'single default’ method based on the probability of a
receivable progressing through successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Single
default rates are calculated separately for exposures in different segments based on
common credit risk characteristics - mainly customer type.
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management - (cont'd)

B. Financial Risk Management - (cont'd)

(i) Credit risk-(cont'd)

c) Expected credit loss assessement for customers - (cont'd)

.31 December 2021
Gross

carrying
amount

Weighted
average 
loss rate

Loss
allowance

Credit
Impaired

NGN’000 % NGN’000
Current 4,669,062 3.14 (146,390) No
Past due 1-30 days 19,508,903 6.79 (1,324,162) No
Past due 31-60 days 7,741,387 10.19 (789,182) No
Past due 61-90 days 2,722,098 48.83 (1,329,182) No
Past due 91-120 days 816,651 51.65 (421,828) No
Past due 121-150 days 514,705 65.65 (337,893) No
Past due 150-180 days 520,761 79.17 (412,265) No
Past due 181 days and above 1,978,795 100.00 (1,978,795) Yes

38,472,362 (6,739,697)
Individually evaluated 11,267,147 - - No
Total trade receivables 49,739,509 (6,739,697)

Movements in the allowance for impairment of financial assets

The movement in allowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the
year was as follows:

Financial assets

Trade
receivables

Related party
receivables

Other
receivables

Cash and
cash

equivalents Total

NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Balance at 1
January 2020 - 33,487 - - 33,487
Amount of
receivables
written 
off - (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)
Net
measurement of
loss allowance - 4,366,464 - - 4,366,464
Balance at 31
December 2020 - 3,284,567 - - 3,284,567

Balance at 1
January 2021 - 3,284,567 - - 3,284,567
Net
measurement of
loss allowance 6,739,697 (2,464,193) 5,798,993 1,001 10,075,498
Balance at 31
December 2021 6,739,697 820,374 5,798,993 1,001 13,360,065
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management - (cont'd)

B. Financial Risk Management - (cont'd)

(i) Credit risk-(cont'd)

d) Expected credit loss assessement for customers - (cont'd)

 Related party receivables

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss and applying experienced credit
judgement. Loss rates are calculated using a 'single default’ method based on the
probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of delinquency to
write-off. Single default rates are calculated separately for exposures in different
segments based on common credit risk characteristics.

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Due from related parties (Note 28 (a)) 19,342,417 68,216,634
Impairment allowance on related party
receivables (Note 29(B)(i)(c))

(820,374) (3,284,567)

18,522,043 64,932,067

 Staff loans, advances and other receivables

The Company advances funds and salaries to employees for operational and personal
activities respectively. To mitigate credit risk, the company monitors the progress of
such activities which have been funded and make monthly deductions from employee
salary for salary advances. The Company reviews the balances due from this category
on a periodic basis, taking into consideration factors such as continued
business/employment relationship and ability to offset amount against transactions
due to the parties. No impairment was provided for in the current year (2020: Nil) as
amounts are secured on employees post-employment benefits..

 Other receivables

For other receivables,  the Company had receivables from a counterparty and
receivables from the Debt Management Office amounting to N7.58 billion as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil). The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk
grade based on data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including
but not limited to external ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts
and cash flow projections and available press information about customers) and
applying experienced credit judgement. Loss rates are calculated using a 'single
default’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Single default rates are calculated
separately for exposures in different segments based on common credit risk
characteristics.

31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Other receivables (Note 17(c)) 5,798,993 -
Impairment allowance on other receivables
(Note 29(B)(i)(c)) (5,798,993) -

- -
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management - (cont'd)

B. Financial Risk Management - (cont'd)

(i) Credit risk-(cont'd)

c) Expected credit loss assessement for customers - (cont'd)

 Cash and cash equivalents

For cash and cash equivalents,  the Company held cash and cash equivalents of
NGN592.56  billion as at 31 December 2021 (2020: NGN 12.30 billion), which
represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets.  The cash and cash
equivalents as at 31 December 2021 are held with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN)
in line with the Treasury Single Account (TSA) policy. At 31 December 2021, the
exposure to credit risk for cash and cash equivalents was as follows.

Note 2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Gross bank balances 18 592,557,024 12,298,667

Impairment allowance on bank balances 18 (1,001) -

592,556,023 12,298,667
(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

Typically, the Company's credit terms with customers are more favourable compared to
payment terms to its vendors in order to help provide sufficient cash on demand to meet
expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes
the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as
natural disasters. The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities
at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
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29 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management - (cont'd)

B. Financial Risk Management - (cont'd)
(ii) Liquidity risk-(cont'd)

31 December 2021
Contractual cash flow

Note
Carrying

amount
Total Less than 1

year Above 1 year
Payable on

demand
NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 20 3,061,633 3,061,633 3,061,633 - -
Due to related parties 20(a) 466,898,082 466,898,082 - - 466,898,082
Other payables 20 7,033,430 7,033,430 7,033,430 - -
Accrued expenses 20 576,441 576,441 576,441 - -

477,569,586 477,569,586 10,671,504 - 466,898,082

31 December 2020
Contractual cash flow

Note
Carrying
 amount

Total Less than 1
year Above 1 year

Payable on
demand

NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 20 996,851 996,851 996,851 - -
Due to related parties 20(a) 17,041,898 17,041,898 - - 17,041,898
Other payables 20 2,476,931 2,476,931 2,476,931 - -
Accrued liabilities 20 689,143 689,143 689,143 - -

21,204,823 21,204,823 4,162,925 - 17,041,898

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Company is not exposed to any market risk.
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30. Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. Net debt is
calculated as total liabilities (as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

2021 2020
NGN’000 NGN’000

Total liabilities 673,346,950 65,795,053
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (592,556,023) (12,298,667)
Adjusted net debt 80,790,927 53,496,386
Total equity 101,838,283 13,143,976
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 0.79 4.07

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year as the
Board of Directors is able to realise its receivables due from related parties as soon as cash is
needed.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December

2021 % 2020 %
NGN’000 NGN’000

Turnover 1,380,413,930 27,807,688

Brought in material and services
- Local (1,346,790,843) (10,671,902)

33,623,087 17,135,786

Other income 254,359 327,806
Finance income 311,905 291,284
Value added 34,189,351 17,754,876

Distribution of value added:

To Government:
- Income taxes 828,633 2 179,134 2
- Minimum tax 3,451,671 11 70,322 -

To Employees:
- Salaries,wages and end of service benefits 16,114,342             48 13,830,428 78
- Finance costs 805,196 2 2,639 -
Retained in the business:
For replacement of PPE (depreciation) 37,375 - 45,547 -
For replacement of the right of use assets
(depreciation) 6,373 - 38,242 -
To augment reserves 12,945,761 39 3,588,564 20
Value added 34,189,351 100 17,754,876 100
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

31 Dec 2021
NGN’000

31 Dec 2020
NGN’000

31 Dec 2019
NGN’000

 31 Dec 2018
NGN’000

31 Dec 2017
NGN’000

Revenue 1,380,413,930 27,807,688 32,555,665 29,544,932 113,199,959
Profit/(Loss) for the year 12,945,761 3,588,564 14,257,340 9,347,096 (27,359,629)

Statement of financial position
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019  31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000 NGN’000
Employment of funds
Property, plant and equipment 47,881 85,256 122,883 165,991 -
Right of use asset - 6,373 44,615 - -
Prepayments 406,827 204,134 - - -
Trade and othere receivables 1,779,919 - - - -
Net current assets/(liabilities) 126,998,458 49,519,652 44,877,995 31,667,534 (326,939,804)
Non-current liabilities (27,394,802) (36,671,439) (21,538,283) (20,702,200) (96,198,592)
Net assets/(liabilities) 101,838,283 13,143,976 23,507,210 11,131,325 (423,138,396)

Funds employed:
Share Capital 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Accumulated deficit (384,976,386) (410,004,420) (399,641,186) (412,017,071) (423,143,396)
Capital contribution 63,666,273 - - - -
Other reserves 423,143,396 423,143,396 423,143,396 423,143,396 -
Shareholders' funds 101,838,283 13,143,976 23,507,210 11,131,325 (423,138,396)

72




